Public Document Pack

Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE

AGENDA

7.00 pm

Council Chamber,
Town Hall, Main Road,
Romford RM1 3BD

Thursday
5 December 2024

Members 6 Quorum 3

COUNCILLORS:

Conservative Group Havering Residents’ Group Labour Group
(2) 3) 1
Ray Best Reg Whitney (Chairman) Jane Keane

Timothy Ryan

Bryan Vincent (Vice-Chair)
John Crowder

For information about the meeting please contact:
Taiwo Adeoye 01708 433079
taiwo.adeoye@onesource.co.uk

To reqister to speak at the meeting please call 01708 433100

before




Strategic Planning Committee, 5 December 2024

Under the Committee Procedure Rules within the Council’s Constitution
the Chairman of the meeting may exercise the powers conferred upon the
Mayor in relation to the conduct of full Council meetings. As such, should
any member of the public interrupt proceedings, the Chairman will warn
the person concerned. If they continue to interrupt, the Chairman will
order their removal from the meeting room and may adjourn the meeting
while this takes place.

Excessive noise and talking should also be kept to a minimum whilst the
meeting is in progress in order that the scheduled business may proceed
as planned.

Protocol for members of the public wishing to report on meetings of the London
Borough of Havering

Members of the public are entitled to report on meetings of Council, Committees and Cabinet,
except in circumstances where the public have been excluded as permitted by law.

Reporting means:-

¢ filming, photographing or making an audio recording of the proceedings of the meeting;

e using any other means for enabling persons not present to see or hear proceedings at
a meeting as it takes place or later; or

e reporting or providing commentary on proceedings at a meeting, orally or in writing, so
that the report or commentary is available as the meeting takes place or later if the
person is not present.

Anyone present at a meeting as it takes place is not permitted to carry out an oral commentary
or report. This is to prevent the business of the meeting being disrupted.

Anyone attending a meeting is asked to advise Democratic Services staff on 01708 433076
that they wish to report on the meeting and how they wish to do so. This is to enable
employees to guide anyone choosing to report on proceedings to an appropriate place from
which to be able to report effectively.

Members of the public are asked to remain seated throughout the meeting as standing up and
walking around could distract from the business in hand.



Strategic Planning Committee, 5 December 2024

DECLARING INTERESTS FLOWCHART — QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF

What matters are being discussed?

A4

D
P Does the business relate to or is it likely to affect a disclosable pecuniary interest. These will include the
interests of a spouse or civil partner (and co-habitees):
| = any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation that they carry on for profit or gain;
+ any sponsorship that they receive including contributions to their expenses as a councillor; or the
councillor's election expenses from a Trade Union;
+ any land licence or tenancy they have in Havering
= any current contracts leases or tenancies between the Council and them;
« any current contracts leases or tenancies between the Council and any organisation with land in Havering
in they are a partner, a paid Director, or have a relevant interest in its shares and securities;
« any organisation which has land or a place of business in Havering and in which they have a relevant interest in its
shares or its securities.
N
o YES Declare Interest and Leave
P Might a decision in relation to that business be reasonably be regarded as affecting (to a greater extent than
E the majority of other Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of ward affected by the decision)
R * Your well-being or financial position; or
S * The well-being or financial position of:
o
N o A member of your family or any person with whom you have a close association; or
A - Any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in which they are
a partner, or any company of which they are directors;
L - Any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class of securities
exceeding the nominal value of £25,000;
1
N o Any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management and to
T which you are appointed or nominated by your Authority; or
E o Any body exercising functions of a public nature, directed to charitable purposes or whose
R principal includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union) of which you are a
E member or in a position of general control or management?
S
T S
I N
You must disclose the fo)
existence and nature of your
personal interests
P
E
c N/
u Would a member of the public, with . )
N knowledge of the relevant facts, You can participate in the
I reasonably regard your personal meeting and vote (or
interest to be so significant that it is NO remain in the room if not a
A likely to prejudice your member of the meeting)
R Y
Y E
S
] - Does the matter affect your financial position or the financial position of any person or body
N through whom you have a personal interest?
- Does the matter relate to an approval, consent, licence, permission or registration that affects
T you or any person or body with which you have a personal interest? NO
E - Does the matter not fall within one of the exempt categories of decisions?
R Y
E E
S s
T
Speak to Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting to avoid allegations of
corruption or bias




Strategic Planning Committee, 5 December 2024

AGENDA ITEMS
1 CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Chair will make their announcements.
Applications for Decision

We would like to remind members of the public that Councillors have to make
decisions on planning applications strictly in accordance with planning principles.

We would also like to remind members of the public that decisions may not always be

popular, but they should respect the need for Councillors to take decisions that will
stand up to external scrutiny or accountability.

2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF SUBSTITUTE
MEMBERS

(if any) - receive.

3 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Members are invited to disclose any interest in any of the items on the agenda at this
point in the meeting.

Members may still disclose any interest in an item at any time prior to the
consideration of the matter.

4 MINUTES
Copy of minutes to follow

To approve as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on
14" November 2024 and to authorise the Chair to sign them.

5 DEVELOPER PRESENTATION - VEOLIA LANDFILL, COLDHARBOUR LANE,
RAINHAM. (Pages 5 - 10)

Report attached.

Zena Smith
Head of Committee and Election
Services



Agenda Iltem 5

s Havering Stategic Planning Committee

LTRERTYE

Developer Presentation
5th December 2024

Location: Veolia Landfill, Coldharbour Lane, Rainham

Ward:

Rainham & Wennington

Description: Extension to the operational life of the landfill and

composting facilities, retention of all landfill buildings
and infrastructure required for these operations
before completion of the restoration of the site.

Case Officer: Malachy McGovern
1.0 BACKGROUND
1.1 This proposed development is being presented to enable Members of the committee

1.2

1.3

14

15

to view it before a planning application is submitted and to comment upon it. The
development does not constitute an application for planning permission and any
comments made upon it are without prejudice and along with the comments received
as a result of consultation, publicity and notification subject to full consideration of any
subsequent application.

The proposal has been the subject to a pre-application meeting with officers. The
proposal has not yet been presented to the GLA.

The scheme is for retention and continued operation of the existing landfill facility
however further detailed reports including an Environmental Statement will be required
to support any planning application submitted. At this stage however, Member
feedback in regard to broad principles for the continuation of the landfill development
will be constructive in taking the scheme forward.

Whilst the principle of the development has been established by planning consent
P1566.12, that permission is explicit in its description and through conditions that the
importation of waste should cease by 315 December 2024. The planning consent
allows a further 2 year period (to end 2026) to import restoration material and, following
that, an aftercare period of 5 years (to end of 2031) The applicant seeks a maximum
of a 5 year extension to these periods including landfill operations and states that this
is due to the national decline in the volume of waste going to landfill (and increase in
recycling).

The applicant submits that an additional 5-year time period is essential in order for the

additional waste volume to be achieved to infill the existing waste mound and to
stabilise and complete the necessary mound contours.

Page 5



2.0 SITE AND SURROUNDINGS

2.1 The Rainham Landfill and Composting Site covers approximately 161 hectares and is
located in the eastern part of Greater London, on the northern bank of the River Thames. The
site is situated southwest of Coldharbour Lane, which defines its northern, northeastern, and
southeastern boundaries. Access to the site is provided via an unadopted highway connecting
Coldharbour Lane to Ferry Lane and the A13 (Rainham Bypass), part of the strategic road
network. To the west is the recently developed Momentum Business Park (Former
Freightmaster Estate), while the Easter Industrial Park lies to the northwest.

2.2 The site is bordered by significant environmental assets. Directly to the north and
northwest are the Inner Thames Marshes Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) and the
Rainham Marshes Local Nature Reserve (LNR), partially managed by the RSPB. To the south,
a public footpath runs along the riverbank. Approximately 1.5 km to the west lies Wennington
Marshes nature reserve, a large wetland area.

2.3 The nearest residential properties are located in Erith, approximately 870 m to the
southeast, across the River Thames. Although the site is not within a conservation area and
does not contain listed buildings or significant heritage assets, it is located within an
Archaeological Priority Area.

2.4 The site’s transport accessibility is very poor, with a Public Transport Accessibility
Level (PTAL) of 0, the lowest rating.

2.5 In terms of policy designations, the site is within a Strategic Industrial Location
(Havering Local Plan Policy 19) (small part of the site only), the Thames Policy Area (Policy
31), and Flood Zone 3a, indicating a high probability of flooding. It also falls under the SSA17
designation for the London Riverside Conservation Park and is located within the Rainham,
Aveley, and West Thurrock Marshes Landscape Character Area as identified in the Land of
the Fanns Landscape Character Assessment (2016).

3.0 THE PROPOSAL
Extension of Operations:

o Landfill and open windrow composting operations to continue until 31 December 2029.
e Restoration of the site to be completed by 31 December 2031.

Retention of Infrastructure:
e Landfill buildings, soil treatment facilities, and supporting infrastructure to remain
operational throughout the extended period.
4.0 PLANNING HISTORY
4.1 P1566.12 (Approved with conditions, 22 September 2016) Planning application for the
continuation of waste inputs and operation of other waste management facilities,

including a materials recycling facility, waste transfer station, open-air composting site,
associated soil plant, gas engines, leachate treatment plant, and incinerator bottom

Page 6



5.0

5.1

5.2

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

7.2

721

7.2.2

ash processing, until 31 December 2024. The application also included the re-profiling
of final contours.

P0070.23 (awaiting completion of S106 Agreement) Continued operation,
redevelopment and expansion of the existing Plastics Recycling/Recovery Facility,
Materials Recycling Facility buildings with vehicle depot and associated landscaping
and parking [Application covers part of the wider site]

P0718.23 (awaiting completion of S106 Agreement) Retention and continued
operation of the compound area consisting of existing gas engines, and leachate
treatment plant beyond the end of 2024. The compound area serves to manage the
gas and leachate from the adjacent landfill [Application covers part of wider site]

CONSULTATION

Members should note that the proposal being presented to them is for continuation of
the existing facility and that there would be no new construction of infrastructure on
site.

It is intended that the following will be consulted regarding any subsequent planning
application:

Mayor of London

London Fire Brigade
Thames Water

Transport for London
Place Services (Ecology)
Environment Agency
London Borough of Bexley
Thurrock Council

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

There has been no community engagement thus far.
MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

The main planning issues raised by the proposal relate to:

Principle of Development
Proposed site layout and function
Design Quality and Scale
Environmental Impacts

Access and parking

Energy and Sustainability

Principle of Development

The NPPF 2023 places a presumption in favour of sustainable development and states
that achieving sustainable development means that the planning system has three
overarching objectives, the social, economic and environmental objectives.

Whilst the principle of the landfill use has been established and deemed acceptable by
the extant and live permission ref. P1566.12, this was for a temporary period (to

Page 7



7.2.3

7.2.4

7.3

7.3.1

7.4

7.4.1

7.4.2

7.4.3

7.4.4

December 2024) to enable the approved landform to be created. Therefore, a fresh
look at the proposal and reconsideration of the scheme against the current
development plan policies and NPPF is considered appropriate.

Sustainable Development (Paragraphs 7-14): The NPPF 2023 emphasizes the
importance of sustainable development as a central objective of the planning system.
The continuation of landfill and gas engines and equipment on part of the site aligns
with these objectives by promoting efficient resource way of capturing waste gas,
contributing to energy needs and the economic, social, and environmental goals
outlined in the NPPF's sustainable development priorities.

Waste (Paragraphs related to waste management): the NPPF 2023 addresses waste
management within its broader environmental objectives. These include protecting and
enhancing the natural environment by minimizing waste and pollution. Detailed
national policies are contained in National Planning Policy for Waste (2014) — this
states that waste management should follow the waste hierarchy with disposal as a
last resort. Further, when determining planning applications, planning authorities
should ensure that landfill sites are restored to beneficial after uses at the earliest
opportunity.

Design, Quality and Scale

There would be no new buildings or structures on site other than the existing landfill
mound. The 12 ancillary gas engines and compound area for dealing with gas and
leachate are existing and would also be retained on site.

Environmental Impacts

Policy W5 of the Joint Waste Development Plan (JWDPD) forms part of the Havering
Development Plan and states that the policy focuses on ensuring that any waste
related development will not generate significant impacts on people, the environment
and resources. The policy lists a number of adverse impacts that should be avoided or
minimised and if necessary mitigated.

Importantly, the proposal is not for a new waste related development but for the
retention of existing landfill and associated gas engines and associated equipment
intended to be continuously operated beyond the end of 2024 (until end of 2029) for
waste management purposes.

Given that the landfill and compound area is proposed to continue operating as
existing, the potential for impacts in the future would need to be assessed as part of
any application. The applicant submits that importantly the compound area will be
operated and managed in accordance with an Environmental Permit, which will
continue to be monitored by the Environment Agency.

Noise & Air Quality

Havering Local Plan 2021 policy 33 ‘Air Quality’ and policy 34 ‘Managing Pollution’ set
out the requirements for new development with regard to acceptable environmental

Page 8



7.4.5

7.4.6

7.5

7.5.1

7.5.2

7.5.3

7.6

7.6.1

7.6.2

8.0

8.1

impacts. The applicant submits that the application site is an existing operational site
and there have been no reported adverse effects or impacts since the operations
began post 2012. The operational plant and machinery would be the same as existing
and no material change in use or processes would occur.

The applicant submits that the proposed operation of the site would generate noise
levels well within relevant noise standards and guidelines at nearest sensitive
receptors and therefore noise would not be significant given the distance form
residential receptors.

London Borough of Havering was declared an Air Quality Management Area in 2006.

The planning application proposal will require an Air Quality Assessment as part of the
Environmental Statement.

Access and Parking

The site is located within an area with a public transport accessibility (PTAL) rating of
0 (worst), with no convenient pedestrian access to bus connections or train station.

There would be no material change in the equipment used nor the total amount of
material deposited on the site — therefore the total cumulative vehicle movements
would not increase, although the period over which those vehicle movements will take
place would be longer.

Existing staff parking and a service yard for refuse vehicles would be retained.

Energy and Sustainability

The applicant submits that the gas engines help to minimise the greenhouse gas
emissions, particularly because their purpose is to extract and capture the landfill gas
(consisting of methane gas and carbon dioxide) and then process it. The processed
gas is turned into electricity which contributes towards the National Grid energy supply
to a wider network of power users. Therefore, part of the existing compound area
serves to be green and an energy source. Therefore, the planning application proposal
is supported by Policy S| 2and Policy Sl 3.

Policy SI8 Waste Capacity and Net Waste self-sufficiency deals with waste self-
sufficiency for new and existing sites. The applicant submits that the application site is
an essential part of London’s waste management infrastructure and remediation will
continue to be after the landfall is restored and beyond.

CONCLUSIONS

At this stage, Members’ considerations and comments on the proposed continuation
of the existing use will be most helpful to incorporate as the various elements of the
proposals are brought together.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 Developer Presentation - Veolia Landfill, Coldharbour Lane, Rainham.

